REPUBLIC OF KENYA

GOVERNMENT OF MAKUENI COUNTY





P.O. BOX 78-90300 MAKUENI

Web: <u>www.makueni.go.ke</u> Email: <u>emalisultan.municipality@makueni.go.ke</u>

MUNICIPALITY FY 2025/2026 COUNTY ANNUAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN (CADP) PUBLIC PARTICIPATION REPORT

FY 2025/26 ADP THEME

Stimulating local economies for shared prosperity

Report Prepared by;

Municipal Participatory Development Coordinator



Submitted to;

- 1. Municipal Manager, Emali-Sultan Hamud Municipality
- 2. Chief Officer Socio-Economic Planning, Revenue & Monitoring and Evaluation
- 3. Chief officer Devolution, Public Participation, County Administration and Special Programmes

Dated: 23rd August, 2024

Table of Contents

1.0	Introduction	2
2.0	Rationale for Preparation of the County Annual Development Plan(CADP)	2
3.0	Objectives of the CADP 2025/26 Public Participation Forums	3
4.0	Public Participation Process and Methodology	3
5.0	Public participation Roadmap	3
6.0	Community Mobilization Strategies	4
7.0	Training of Public Participation Facilitators	4
8.0	Attendance summary	4
9.0	Community Proposed Priority Projects and Programs for FY 2025/26	5
10.0	Challenges, Recommendations and Conclusion	17
11.0	Conclusion	17
12.0	Report Annexes	18
12.1	l Pictorials	18
12.2	2 ADP 2025/26 Public Participation Schedule	20
12.3	3 Advert on Public Participation on ADP 2025/26	21
12.	4 Attendance lists - Extracts	22

1.0 Introduction

Public participation is a constitutional requirement in county governance. Article 1 of the Constitution of Kenya, 2010, states that sovereign power belongs to the people. In Article 10 (2) (a) and the Fourth Schedule Part 2 (14) of the Constitution, public participation is stipulated as a function of the County Government. Article 174 underscores the need for public participation in governance at the county level, promoting democracy and accountability. Section 115 (1) and Section 87 of the County Government Act No. 17 of 2012 further mandate citizen participation in county processes and outline the principles of citizen participation in counties. Section 184 (1) (c) of the Urban Areas and Cities Act, 2012 (amended 2019) provides for participation by residents in the governance of urban areas and cities.

Public participation allows the people to contribute their inputs and voices to county decisions, resulting in sustainable development.

2.0 Rationale for Preparation of the County Annual Development Plan(CADP) The Constitution of Kenya, 2010 established a devolved system of governance, comprising a national government and 47 county governments, each with distinct and shared responsibilities as outlined in Article 186 and the Fourth Schedule of the constitution. Among the responsibilities of county governments, as specified in the Fourth Schedule, is county planning and development. The County Government Act, 2012, particularly Section 104, mandates that county governments must engage in planning, and stipulates that public funds shall not be spend outside an established planning framework. These county plans are developed by the county executive and must receive approval from the county assembly. Section 107 of the County Government Act specifies various types of county plans, including County Spatial Plans, Sector Plans, County Integrated Development Plans (CIDPs), and Cities and Urban Areas Plans. To implement the CIDP, the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), 2012, in Section 126, requires county governments to draft Annual Development Plans (ADPs). The ADP serves as a foundation for implementing the CIDP, directing the allocation of resources to priority projects and programs. According to Section 126 of the PFMA 2012, county governments must prepare a development plan in line with Article 220(2) of the Constitution, which should be submitted to the County Assembly for approval by 1st September each year. The CADP serves as a critical link between 6 | P a g e the development priorities outlined in the CIDP and the county's annual budget. Additionally, Section 105 mandates that the county planning unit ensure alignment between county plans and the national planning framework. Consequently, the CADP provides a mechanism for aligning county development priorities with Kenya Vision 2023, its Medium-Term Plan IV, and the Kenya Kwanza's Bottom-Up Economic Transformation Agenda (BETA). The purpose of preparing the 2025-2026 Annual Development Plan is to establish the county planning framework and roadmap for guiding development efforts during the financial year 2025/2026, with the overarching goal of advancing the county's transformation agenda and improving the quality of life for the citizens of Makueni.

3.0 Objectives of the CADP 2025/26 Public Participation Forums

The main objectives of the public participation on ADP were to;

- To identify and prioritize programs and projects for implementation in the FY 2025/26 based on CIDP II, iDEP and subsequent budget public participation that have not yet been funded.
- To provide feedback on community concerns related to county governance and development.

4.0 Public Participation Process and Methodology

The CADP participatory process began with the issuance of a circular by the Executive Committee Member for Finance and Socio-Economic Planning, providing instructions and timelines to all County Accounting Officers.

The County Government conducted public participation forums in 30 wards from 13th to 15th August,2024 to identify potential projects for implementation in the forthcoming financial year.

The forums were facilitated by technical officers from the County Treasury and the Department of Devolution and Municipalities. We targeted the general public, professionals, opinion leaders, citizen fora members, Ward HODs, organized groups, minority and marginalized groups, and special interest groups. The facilitation methodologies used during the public participation forums included lectures, personal views sharing, group discussion, questions and answers, and submission of memoranda to co.planning@makueni.go.ke.

5.0 Public participation Roadmap

S/No.	Activity	Timelines	Responsibility
1.	Release of Public Notice on	6 th August,	CECM Finance
	the PP forums	2024	
2.	Mobilization of Communities	6 th -15 th August,	National, County & Municipality
	and Stakeholders	2024	administrators, opinion
			leaders, etc
3.	Ward HoDs consultative and	12 th & 14 th	Ward Administrators & Lead
	Planning Meetings	August, 2024	Facilitators
4.	Ward Public Participation	13 th & 15 th	Ward Lead Facilitators
	Forums	August,2024	

6.0 Community Mobilization Strategies

Multiple strategies were employed to mobilize residents and stakeholders within the Municipality to participate in the forums:

- i. County website
- ii. Gazette advertisement Daily Nation dated 6th August, 2024
- iii. Local FM radio Ene FM and Musyi FM
- iv. National and County Administrators
- v. Public pronouncements
- vi. Social media platforms WhatsApp, Facebook
- vii. Citizen fora
- viii. Market coordination and sector committees

7.0 Training of Public Participation Facilitators

There was an organized training session for PP facilitators drawn from directorates of budget, socio-economic planning, public participation, M& E and Municipalities on 9th August,2024. The participants were trained on the participation tool, work plan, forum facilitation, community engagement ethics, data collection, reporting and expected outputs.

8.0 Attendance summary

Sub-	Ward	Venue	Attendan	ce Analy	sis			Total	
County			Gender	Below 35	35-59	Over 60	PWD		
Kilome	Kasikeu	Salvation	Male	2	48	4	1	54	
		Army Church	Female	8	30	2	0	40	
Makueni	Nzaui/Kalil	AIC Central	Male	4	37	3	0	44	
	i/ Kalamba		Female	4	22	2	1	28	
		Mutyambua	Male	8	41	3	1	52	
		Market	Female	2	31	1	1	34	
Kibwezi	Emali/	Kwa Kakulu	Male	16	32	10	1	58	
West	Mulala	CTTI	Female	12	26	2	3	40	
			Male	6	31	2	3	39	

Sub-	Ward Venue		Attendance Analysis				Total	
County			Gender	Below 35	35-59	Over 60	PWD	_
	Nguu Masumba	Masumba Social Hall	Female	4	27	0	1	31
Total				66	325	29	12	420

9.0 Community Proposed Priority Projects and Programs for FY 2025/26

The communities and stakeholders were technically guided to identified priority projects for implementation in financial year 2025/26 based on outputs from the CIDP, iDEP and subsequent budget public participation that had not yet been funded.

The priority programs and projects for 5 wards within the Municipality are tabulated below;

Ward	Development Sector	Community Priorities for ADP 2025/26
Emali/Mulala	Community livelihood/Economic Empowerment	 provision of subsidized AI programme Provision of Doper and Galla goats to farmers in the ward. Construction of crushes in Mwanyani Kativani, Kitandi, Ngetha and Welfare area Recruitment of Agriculture extension offices – one officer4 per ward. Provision of certified seeds and Agro – chemicals(genuine) in the ward plus training. Flagship: construction of a value addition plant in Emali town for tomato and onions – encouraged to be keen on NAVCDP
	Lands	 Market planning for Emali and sultan Hamud towns Land succession and titling Surveying of all markets within the ward
	Trade	 Gazettement of second market day for Emali town Construction of Emali stockyard Lower licenses of scrap metal dealers
	Water Access	Construction of Muuoni mega dam (Kwa Mwaniki sand dam and sump tank) as per the Prefeasibilty study under headquarter and as

Ward	Development Sector	Community Priorities for ADP 2025/26
		 a priority. County needs to disseminate the feasibility study Uthangathi - Kasungu sand dam and sump tank Needs to fresh water connection from Nolturesh to the residents of Emali/ Sultan Hamud areas Distribution of kwa Katei - Kwa Sammy, Kwa Kasoni. Equipping and flushing of Kiuani borehole Rehabilitation of Kimulu borehole. Nguasini concrete dam - construction of public toilet, cattle trough, hand pump, fencing and distribution of water. Mwanyani borehole- equipping at source. Rehabilitation of Kyunguni sand dam. Munyuni Sump Tank Mwasang'ombe sand dam - check viability and raise the sand dam wall Kwa Nzele sand dam - raise the sand dam wall and construction of a new sump tank. Kwa Mulele sand dam Kwa Mulele sand dam Kwa Mbilu, Kwa Velele earth dam - check sand dams in Matiku area Desilting and fencing of Kwa Mwanyani and Kwa Kaleli earth dams and others in the ward Desalination of Katune borehole
		 Kwa Kamba – Kinyoo water project.
	Health	 Fully upgrade Mwanyani health centre to model status. Include provision of enough drugs and medical personnel in the health facility. Emali level 4 hospital upgrading and encourage use of county health cover(MakueniCare), SHIF, NHIF. Include purchase of more space for expansion of the health facility. Mwasang'ombe dispensary – electrification since wiring has already been done plus staff quarters

Ward	Development Sector	Community Priorities for ADP 2025/26
		 Kwa Kakulu health centre fencing and construction of staff quarters Tutini dispensary – fast track the fencing of
		the facility and recruitment of a full- time medical personnel
		 Construction and equipping of Mulala dispensary – new project as the governor had promised.
		 purchase of Ward ambulance for Emali subcounty hospital, Construction of staff quarters plus upgrading of the facility
	Education	Construction of Kalima ECDE centres, Mumbuni feeder ECDE, 8) Kiliku ECDE, Kwa Kamba ECDE, Ngoni ECDE
		 Equipping of the workshop Three Phase Electricity connection to kwa Kakulu CTTI and purchase of land for expansion. Equipping of workshop in Kwa
		Kakulu CTTI – welding and MVM courses and administration block and dining hall in the CTTI. County government to support to have one of the disposed vehicles transferred to the CTTI for use in driving and MVM courses training.
		 Construction of a Community library at Emali town after the bill on libraries is approved in senate and National Government.
	Social protection	 Construction of play ground – Court for basketball and volleyball in ward. Mwanyani protection centre to be operationalized and opened as an approved school.
		 Organize ward marathon – to be held annually for talent identification and promotion (Makueni Children) Ligi Kubwa Mtaani – for those aged 24 –
		35yearts – need for this program in sports.
	Infrastructure and Enablers	 Purchase of grader for road maintenance Road improvement; Mwanyani – Rehabilitation centre road, Mwanyani – ABC Mwanyani – Kwa

Ward	Development Sector	Community Priorities for ADP 2025/26
		Kaleli road. Kwa Nzonga – kwa Daudi Wa Kamuu road, Kwa Kinyili – Rehabilitation centre road Mwanyani – Rehabilitation centre road Kwa Kaleli – kwa Kasoni – Kwa Kiio corporal road, Kwa Ngungi – Mbithe Peter – Kisaani Road, Kwa Matuku – Malili – Kiuani road, Kwa Masauti – Mungethelele road Kwa Kaleli primary – Kikumini road
	Energy	Collaborate with REREC to connect more HHs with electricity
	ICT	Establishment of green spaces and WIFI hubs at Emali town
	Devolution	Construction of a modern resource centre in the ward
Kasikeu	Community livelihood/Economic Empowerment	 Provision of timely and adequate fertilizer. Completion of Kwothithu mailing plant. Provision of subsidized artificial insemination. Completion /distribution of Mikuyu 2 water project for irrigation. Construction of sump tank, solar power installation at Kwa lingata and distribution. Redirection of flood water by excavation of storm water drain at Kawese village to avoid shamba flooding. Installation of solar power distribution of Kyakivandi water project for irrigation. Enhancement and distribution of Witikaa water projects for irrigation. Construction of mega dam at Kawese." Completion of Kwothithu mailing plant. Construction of aggregation centre and water supply" SACCO access to credit to facilitate farmers.
	Lands	 Finalization of the planning of Sultan Hamud open air market. implementation of Kasikeu market plan. Survey and beaconing of the encroached feeder roads in Kasikeu wards. Facilitate survey and titling of agricultural
		land.

Ward	Development Sector	Community Priorities for ADP 2025/26
		 Survey and beaconing of public land and areas with county projects.
		Recruit an officer to facilitate land succession
		and ownership
	Trade	Construction of public toilet at Kasikeu stock
		yard
		"Expansion and enhancement of Kasikeu
		market shed with solar power installation and
		a water tank.
		Provision of tools of trade for the youth "Ujuzi
		teke teke"- increase the funding and the
		number of students.
		Completion of Sultan Hamud open air market.
		Construction of toilet at Kasikeu stock yard"
	Water Access	Construction of a sump tank near Kayata
		borehole and to be distributed to isika.
		Kithina borehole distribution extension to
		Mitamboni, Kiio village, Kithina village, Kithina
		primary, Ngooni village, Nduluni borehole and
		Mwanyani village.
		Distribution of Kivauwe springs to Kitulu,
		Muthwani, Muangini primary, Muangini
		secondary and Muangini market.
		Repair of Kaluku sand.
		Construction of gabion and desilting of kwa
		Mathuku earth dam
	Environment	Sand dam construction at Kwa Ngelesi in
		Kima river.
		Construction of sand dams and gabions along Kima river and Kwa Mathuku river.
		 Provision of tree seedling for household levels and institutions
	Sanitation	
	Jaillalion	Establishment of a dumping site in all trading centres
		Rehabilitation of DTF at sultan Hamud town
		Construction of drainage systems within
		Sultan Hamud and Kasikeu
		Establishment of a dumping site and drainage
		system for Kasikeu market.
		System for Austrica market.

Ward	Development Sector	Community Priorities for ADP 2025/26
	Health	 Recruitment of additional health staff at Sultan Hamud hospital. Upgrading of Sultan Hamud hospital; renovation of the outpatient block, establishment of emergency block, renovation of the roof/ replacement of the asbestos, construction and equipping of a maternity wing and equipping of the mortuary. Upgrading of Kasikeu Health Centre to a Model health facility. Fencing, equipping and construction of a laboratory at Nduluni dispensary. Equipping and construction of a laboratory, staff house construction, ceiling and tiling of Ngalana dispensary. Fencing, equipping and construction of a laboratory at Masokani dispensary. Construction of a maternity wing, staff quarters and fencing at Lumu dispensary"
	Education	 Construction of a model ECDE centre at Sultan Hamud primary. Construction of ECDE classes at Kwa-mbeu, Mbiini, Kwale, Kwa-katia, Kitumbini, Kawese, Mumela, Masokani, Kithina, Kitivo, Nduluni, Kwa Kalelo and Mutweamboo primary schools. Construction pit latrines at Mbyani ECDE.
	Social protection	 Feasibility study for the establishment of rescue center/homes for the elderly. Increase funding for special feeding programmes for elderly. Construction of a rescue centre for the OVCs in the county Establishment of a youth fund for youth empowerment and talent development. Levelling, fencing and equipping Kwa Mukuyu playgrounds Provide tools of trade for ujuzi teke teke Feasibility study for establishment of rescue centre for elderly people

Ward	Development Sector	Community Priorities for ADP 2025/26
TOTAL A	Infrastructure and Enablers	 Grading, murraming, drainage works along Kwa Malenge- Kulu Kayata road Grading, murraming, drainage works of off kima road- Kwa muoki, - Kwa Kitangi- Kima borehole - Kwa Ngelesi road. Grading, murraming, drainage works of Jua kali-Mombasa-Kasikeu road. Grading, murraming, drainage works of Kawese-Kalimbini-Lumu-Enguli-Kaskeu market road. Grading, murraming, drainage works SGR-Kawese river-Katinila-Lumu stage. Completion of drainage system at Sultan Hamud. Opening of AIC Kanaani to Kawese, gabions at Kaluku region due to gulleys. Kwale to Kima Road. Road improvement; Kithina - Kwa Mbaa Mwei, Kwa Nzai - Kiio meter drains and Kwa Kitale-Kwa Mbaa Mwei" Establishment of a Computer training centre at Sultan Hamud Upgrading of Kasikeu- Kayata- Upete- Kilome road to bitumen
	Energy	 Installation of high mast floodlight at Mbiini Market Installation of floodlights at Ngokomi market, Muani market, Kayata market, Kiongwani stage.
	ICT	Establishment of an ICT Hub at Sultan Hamud market
Mbitini	Community livelihood/Economic Empowerment	 Certified seed (grain and pulse) to be supplied in time as per the planting calendar. Kwa kuni ED distribution for irrigation at valueni sub- location
	Lands	Market surveys, planning and beaconing.
	Trade	Construction of sanitation facilities at Mutyambu and Kithumani markets
	Water Access	Expansion and fencing of kithembeoni earthdam

Ward	Development Sector	Community Priorities for ADP 2025/26
		Distribution of Kwa Kuni ED.
		Equipping and distribution of kithumani
		borehole (not yet test pumped).
		Investigation for distribution of water from
		Kwa Nyala borehole(tanaati) to
		Nguumo/Tulimani or a site for drilling another
		borehole at Vulueni sub-location.
		Solarization of Kyumba borehole and
		distribution to Mutiuwa
		Distribution of Mutyambua Borehole water to
		Kyumbuni.
		Drilling of a borehole kwa Mwema-Kikali
		(masue).
		Distribution of water from Ilengani to kwa
		Ngove and kwa Nduu.
		Siting and drilling of a borehole at Mungyani
		secondary school "
		Rehabilitation of Mikuyu 1 water project.
		Solarization of Kyumba borehole and
		distribution to Mutiuwa
	Health	Staffing, supplying drugs and fencing of health
		centres
		Actualizing Mutyambua level IV to level IV
		status.
		Upgrading of Kavuthu health Centre to
		24hours operation, staffing and supply drugs.
		Renovation of Kakutha health centre
		Construction of latrine and fencing of Ngoto
		dispensary.
	Education	 CHVs training and mobilization Construction of; Vulueni ECDE, Kithatha ECDE,
	Eudcation	Construction of; Vulueni ECDE, Kithatha ECDE, Mbuvuni ECDE, Matooni ECDE, Mbuthani ECDE,
		Mutyambua ECDE, Kithumani ECDE, Mamuu
		ECDE.
		 Upgrading of Kithumani CTTI (boarding facility,
		electricity, fencing and mechanical
		workshops)
		Construction and levelling of playgrounds;
		Mwambweni playground, Mutyambua
		playground and Kyomundu playground.
		playground and hybridina playground.

Ward	Development Sector	Community Priorities for ADP 2025/26
	Social protection	Mapping of PLWD
	Infrastructure and	Opening/grading /gravelling/structures of;
	Enablers	Mutanda- Kavuthu, Kavuthu- Kyumbuni-Nzou,
		Muusini – Sultan, Mungyani- Barazani.
		Construction of a bridge at muooni (Kavuthu)
		Construction of a drift at Kwa Mbita; Mbuvuni-
		Kwakivati-Katundu-Kamwanyani-Kithumani-
		Mandei-Kitukani, T room – Maanooni road,
		Mbenuu –kwa thuku road, Vulueni- muusini
		road, Ilengeni/Tulusi twili drift.
		Survey of roads being opened; Ikuyuni-
		Mbuthani
		Rehabilitation of gullies
	Energy	Installation of floodlights at; Kithumani,
	Lifergy	Kavuthu, Barazani, Mbenuu, Kyumbuni,
		Ndauni, Kwa Thuku, Mwanyani, Kwa Weatho,
		Nthunguni, Mwambwani, Mungyania and
		Katundu
Nguu/	Community	Support farmers with certified green grams
Masumba	livelihood/Economic	seeds (on timely manner)
Masulliba	Empowerment	Support farmers in pasture development
	Linpowerment	(provide pasture seeds)
		Finalize farmer profiling by filing the gaps on
		market linkages
		Capacity building farmers through
		Agripreneurship program.
		Construction of public aggregation centre in
		Kikumini and Matutu market
		Capacity building of farmers on the formation
		of Sacco's and marketing of their farm
		products
	Lands	
	Lanus	·
		include survey of land to reduce land conflict.)
		Resolve land ownership in markets in the ward.
		Survey of land in the main market – Masumba and Muuani
		and Muuani.
		Survey and planning of kwa Matungu, and Matutu manilata and ather manilate in the
		Matutu markets, and other markets in the
		ward.

Ward	Development Sector	Community Priorities for ADP 2025/26
	Environment and Climate Change	 Support citizens with tree seedlings for planting in the ward. Sensitize citizens to plant more tree to protect the environment and effects of climate change in the ward. Buy tree seedlings from the nurseries from nurseries in the ward. Environmental conservation of Nguu and Ithumba hills
	Trade	 Construction of public toilets in Uutini, Makutano market, Kwa Ndava and Vololo Market. Need to check of land availability for Makutano market. Construction of market sheds in Kikumini and Yikivumbu markets. Gazetting a market day for Masumba market.
	Water Access	 Kwa Mwanthi sump tank distribution by the county government. Proposed that the county to distribute Water from sand dams done by Africa Sand Dam Foundation (ASDF). Solarization of Matutu Water project. Repair and solarization of Kaluki Borehole. Excavation, desilting and check dams -Kwa Maria and Kwa Mitava earth dams
	Health	 Equip the laboratory which is currently being used as a maternity and construction of a new maternity block. Expansion of Katulani dispensary. Employment of more Health personnel in the facilities (two per dispensary) Kwa Ndava placement of a Health personnel in the facility. Supply of drugs and medicine in the Health facilities (anti-venom and Anti rabies) Construction of a laboratory.in Kitende dispensary
	Education	Introduction of beauty therapy recruitment of an instructor and extension of the electricity by wiring in the CTTI workshop

Ward	Development Sector	Community Priorities for ADP 2025/26
		Renovation of Masumba CTTI in FY2025/26
		• Construction of Mithumoni, Mii, Mweini,
		Kyeni, Nguma, Ndulu, Kitende ECDE centres.
	Social protection	Sensitize the members of the public about the
		Emali rehabilitation centre.
		Capacity building of citizens on social life.
		Organize youth forums in the ward to
		empower them socially and economically.
		Youth Empowerment program. Mentor the
		youth through the youth representatives in the
		local ward level.)
		Assessment and mapping of PWD and support
		them with assistive devices.
	Infrastructure and	Opening and grading of Kwa Mukei – Kwa
	Enablers	Jacob - Mawiyoo - Kasunguni-Ngangasa-
		Ndonguni road. (priority)
		Murraming and grading of Kwa Carlos – New
		Apostolic – Kwa Ngii – Kwa Ndivo – Kwa Tuli
		road
		Grading and Murraming of Kikumini
		Secondary – Safaricom – Kwa S – Kwa
		Mukonyo - Katulani road
	Energy	Installation of street lights in Matutu and
		Kakili markets.
Nzaui/Kilili/Kala	Community	Strengthening of the value chain (Market for
mba	livelihood/Economic	farm produce, supply of Farm inputs
	Empowerment	(subsidized fertilizer and pesticides) and
		Transport for manure to farmers)
	Lands	Planning of markets
		Issuance of allotment letters
		Survey of road reserves.
	Trade	Market cleaning
	Water Access	Kwa Mwanthi sump tank distribution by the
		county government.
		Proposed that the county to distribute water
		from sand dams done by Africa Sand Dam
		Foundation (ASDF).
		Solarization of Matutu Water projects.
		Repair and solarization of Kaluki Borehole.

Ward	Development Sector	Community Priorities for ADP 2025/26
		Excavation, desilting and check dams -Kwa
		Maria and Kwa Mitava earth dams
	Health	Removal of asbestos at Matiliku Sub county
		hospital.
		Expansion of Maternity, Mortuary, and X-ray at
		Matiliku subcounty hospital
		Electrification of dispensaries.
	Education	Construction of Mung'etheele, Kyangwasi,
		Kalamba, Maumi ECDE classrooms
		Fencing of Kawala CTTI, Nzeeni CTTI
		upgrading
		Issuance of bursaries
	Infrastructure and	Drainage systems in markets.
	Enablers	Drainage system of Matiliku - Katulye -
		Mutulani road
		Drainage system of Muuani – Kaliivia road
		Drainage system of Kalamba - Mwaani road
		Opening and heavy graving Kwambiti - Gigiri
		boys – Matua, Kalamba – Katulye road –
		Kisovoni drift, Mbiuni - Kwa Mutaui - Mbaeni
		drift and other drainage systems structures.
		Grading and drainage of Jasho - Kawala -
		Mulengu road and Ndovea - Kwa Reuben -
		Nila - Kyeeko - Kwa Charles.
		Heavy grading of opening of Matiliku - Ngaa -
		Mangelete – Gigiri, Kalaani – Mulangoni –
		Mathanguni road.
		Heavy grading and drainage system of
		Makutano - Mwanyani - kalumbi road, Matiliku
		- Kinoti road, Ngaa - kiliani road, Mwanyani -
		Yandia - Mungetheele - Kwa Mutungi - Kalima
		- Mulenyu - kwa Matungu, Makalani-Kwa
		Nguli Road
		Construction of Nzeeni drift.
	Energy	Floodlights at Makutano market, Wee, Jasho
		market, Kwa Mutavi, Mbiuni market
		"Follow-up with KPLC on power blackouts
		especially at Matiliku market.

10.0 Challenges, Recommendations and Conclusion

S/No.	Challenges	Recommendations
1.	Changing of community development priorities during	Executive to ensure proposed projects and programs are not altered
	supplementary budgets	 Consultation of the Municipal Board during supplementary budgets
2.	Low turnout in participation forums. Only 0.33% of the projected municipality population participated.	 Establish elaborate mobilization and communication strategies Utilization of established municipality governance structures Continuous community, empowerment and engagement
3.	Uncoordinated/disjointed public participation	 Harmonization of public participation function/activities within the County. Municipalities to be involved in planning and facilitation Development of a municipality public participation framework in collaboration with Departments of finance and Devolutions
4.	Low participation by youth, women and people with disability in the public participation forums	 Strengthening thematic groups participation Sensitization of special interest groups on their role in governance and management of the municipality

11.0 Conclusion

For effective and meaningful public participation, it is essential to integrate public input into decision-making and governance processes. The County Government should enhance community feedback mechanisms to bridge the gap between community expectations and actual implementation. Furthermore, it is vital to safeguard community development priorities from changes imposed by external stakeholders. Ultimately, authentic public participation recognizes communities' rights to self-manage and advance their development, fostering shared prosperity and socio-economic transformation.

12.0 Report Annexes

12.1 Pictorials



Figure 1: Madam Irene Nduku, Chief Officer addressing the community at Emali/Mulala ward



Figure 2: ADP 2025/26 Public Participation at Masumba Social Hall, Nguu/Masumba Ward



Figure 3: ADP 2025/26 Public Participation at Mutyambua Market, Mbitini ward

12.2 ADP 2025/26 Public Participation Schedule



Figure 4: ADP 2025/26 Public Participation Schedule

12.3 Advert on Public Participation on ADP 2025/26



Figure 5:Advert on ADP 2025/26 Public Participation Forums - Daily Nation 6-08-2024

12.4 Attendance lists - Extracts

	REPUBLIC	OF KENYA		GC	VERNME	OF M	AKUE	NI COL	1000111	35-60 AL 35-60 AL Once 60 Al
			COUNT	Y TREA	SURY					
	ACTIVITY: WARD PI		PATION ON FY							
WAR	D: Name	Sub Ward Telephone		Gender		DATE 11			PWD Signature	
				Male (M)	Female (F)	Below 35	35-	Over 60		
	TAKKED N KOMU	VULUENI	0728244	1			V		-	Trume
2	JACKSON KAMERA	Mutues	63a1LGe3:					-		-
3.	PATRICK K. Mastel	a part framework	0706383265	V			4			Posolo
1	Taking marieta		A CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY OF TH	-						Time -
3.	ungangs was		THE RESERVE OF THE PARTY OF THE	1			-			april 20
4	DESTP-MANUARE						×	3		Opini
7	Julius K. Mangar							~		Kujar.
12	Breek M. Kunner							1		CAVIK
	Bonifice Mut						V			0
10	Parties Longe	The state of the s					10	100		March.
	Manuel to Kinda			1			1		101	6113

Figure 6: Mbitini Ward attendance register extract COUNTY TREASURY ACTIVITY, WARD PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF FY 2025-26 COUNTY ANNUAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN (ADP) VEHILLE Springle 11 Knowled Lander DATE 15/12 24 WARD EMALI/MULALA Sub Ward (25) (3) 0705/166 883 Margaret many Emous Lister my musing congle 0719130 864 E-street £3.4

50

0702051722 0796516549

074896267

ELINICO M NOINCI

POLEMAT & MUSQU FMALL

I Sher B. Kurn Emaco

Figure 7: Emali/Mulala Ward attendance lists- extract

ov orzalite	79763 (P	V	Female (F)	Below 35	35-60	Over 60		49
tite			V		V			17
	06193							
CONTROL OF THE PARTY OF THE PAR		V			V			bariel
silver oll	V12 648	-			-			ther
	6631	870	45037		v			mes
	400		~		-			4
1 more 072	5161871		-		-			-
	53420	~		V				Att.
siker 0700x	54950	V		V	4			1
	17(7)0	en		~	,			poom
MILLE CATO	2350g	/		0	Th			Shire
SINEN DIOTE	74150				V			and
	ralimbin, 100°s Leisu 07905 Lingua 072705 Sikav 07005 asyali 0706 asyali 0706 ulut 0710	Talindon, 400 8691 Leieu 0790891617 1110000 0725161871 History 0727053420 Sikav 0700884950 avali 0806142858 ustikas 07102381991	almobini 400 8681 870 Leibu 07910881617 11710200 0727053420 Sikar 0727053420 avali 0806142858 12 astics 0710235000 V	almobini 400 8681 8704508371 Leieu 07910581617 - 1110000 0727053420 V 51800 0727053420 V arali 0806442858 L astres UT10225000 V	Talindmi, 100 86 81 870450376 LEGO 0790561617 1110000 0725161871 HIREM 0727053420 V SIKAN 0700884450 V AVALI 08906442858 W ASTRES 0710235000 V	Talimbm. 100 8691 8704518376 Colors of 20051867 Colors of 25/6/877 Colors of 27053420 V V V Colors of 27053420 V V V Colors of 270534250 V V V Colors of 27052858 Colors of 2705285800 V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V	Talindon, 400 86 81 87 0450375 V 1110000 0790591617	Talindmi, 100 86 81 870450376 Liciou 0790501617 Littopen 0725/6/871 Fixen 0727053420 Sixou 0700884450 Avali 0806642858 6 Sixou 0710235004 January 0710235004

Figure 8: Kasikeu Attendance List - extract

No Name	Name	Sub Ward Designalin.	Telephone	Ge	nder		Age	13000	PWD	Signature
				Male (M)	Female (F)	Below 35	35- 60	Over 60		
1	Newton Mong	u.w.c	0105818546	V	0.000	V				Ha-6.
2	Rath Mussal!	Economy	0705096511		V	/				Al
3	Justice Makinga	Statistician	0708227912	~		/				THE
4	Eunia kajalo	W. Apmi	072676570-51		V	V				Truge
5	Joseph Ndoo	V/Admin	0703911229	V			~			XA
6	NICODEMIO MASILA	CHIEF	0723430925	-			~		. 4	m-
7.	Susand Hamuis	DE CHIET	0713815497		~		1			\$
5	ANDOEK MISH	e, A CHIEF	0727596397	. ~			L			ANY.
1	SONATTAN MUTISO	Afaner.	0724063902	·V			/			20
	Januaries Mhays			V			V		_	my
11	Johnson m	RIC	07/49448	アノン			1			Mu
١.	truta Bourface	co glanne	0792925932	~			J			men

Figure 9: Nzaui/Kilili/Kalamba ward attendance list extract

Bernard Wambua
Compiled by



23rd August,2024

Date